
TOWN OF WAITSFIELD 1 

SELECTBOARD MEETING AGENDA 2 

Monday, June 9, 2025 | 6:30 PM 3 

Location: Waitsfield Town Office 4 

(Zoom access details below) 5 

 6 

I. Call to Order – 6:30 PM 7 

Location: Waitsfield Town Office or via Zoom (see access information below) 8 

 9 

II. Regular Business 10 

A. Agenda Adjustments 11 
• Additions, removals, or modifications pursuant to 1 V.S.A. § 312(d)(3)(A) 12 

B. Consider a 6:00 pm start time for the June 23rd meeting for hear from the public for the 13 
Overlay District 14 

B. Public Forum 15 
• Open for public comment 16 

 17 

III. Business Items 18 

A. End of Fiscal Year Forecast – Including Road Department with Steve Lewis 19 
• Review current financials and projections through fiscal year-end 20 

B. Financial Loss Report 21 
• Status update: what has been discovered, who is investigating, and next steps 22 
• Involvement of CISA and Vermont Intelligence 23 

C. Aron Shea Presentation 24 

D. Town Road Crew Updates 25 

1. Excavator Rental 26 
• Request for Selectboard authorization for Town Administrator to approve invoice if 27 
quote remains unchanged 28 



2. Loader review and consider approving purchase 29 
• Update on loader procurement for the Town Garage 30 

E. Flood Recovery Update 31 
• Status check on current work and priorities 32 
• Guidance on responding to resident concerns and flood-related property damage 33 

F. General Wait House 34 
• Connector Space Use Discussion and Potential Action 35 

G. Work Plan Review 36 
• Review projects and priorities 37 

H. Selectboard Roundtable  38 

I. Town Administrator’s Updates  39 

J. Other Business 40 

 41 

IV. Consent Agenda 42 

A. Items for Approval 43 
1. Minutes of May 19, 2025 44 
2. Bills Payable and Treasurer’s Warrants 45 
3. Aegis Solar – Annual Contract 46 
4. Sheriff’s Department Contract 47 
5. Liquor License 48 

 Big Picture 49 

 50 

V. Adjourn 51 

 52 

*PLEASE NOTE: Public Access to this meeting will be hybrid, remote via Zoom or in person at 53 
the Waitsfield Town Office. For remote access, please use the following link: 54 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82056117089 55 
Meeting ID: 820 5611 7089 56 
By phone: 1 (929) 205-6099 57 

Anyone wishing to speak can do so during the designated times, as indicated by the chair. 58 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82056117089






 

 
 

1 

Workforce Housing Proposal 

Overview of Concept 
• Our proposal is for the town to provide a portion of land to our project team where we will 

put workforce housing. This will be defined by “Middle” Affordability which is 80-120% of 
the Area Mean Income which is $110,000 for Waitsfield. With approximately 30% of gross 
income going to housing, that equates to a monthly spend of $3,300 on housing at 120AMI. 
At 80AMI, the monthly spend would be $2,200. Housing values for 80-120% of AMI would 
put sales values between $300,356 and $450,535 (Source: Fannie Mae) 
 

• Shea Property Services has completed a septic design on its land, which is adjacent to the 
proposed property, allowing for 26 single family homes. The proposed options are based on 
this septic capacity and the amount of units vary based on how many single-family units 
there are and how many apartments there are.   
 

• We have put together three options to show the potential of the development. There is a 
potential to test pit and provide onsite septic (On the Town Land) once we get further into 
the project. This will directly affect the amount of units that can be put on this property.  
 

• Beyond providing additional housing, tax income and workforce, this will also provide 
several new users for our under-utilized water service within the town.  
 

• Our current plan is to install local septic but depending on timing this could be tied into the 
upcoming wastewater treatment project.  
 

• All units sold would be deed-restricted to keep the units as workforce housing in perpetuity 
(99-year restriction) 
 

• ACT 250 is a consideration for this project and a decision would have to be made about the 
project and this jurisdictional decision. 
 

• We have been in communication with the Central Vermont Economic Development 
Corporation (CVEDC) regarding potential financial support. This would take approximately 
2-3 years and could result in as much as $3.5 Million in support. We plan to submit this 
project this fall if the Town is amenable to the idea. This will greatly help the affordability of 
the potential housing.  



O
ld
C
enter

Fa
y
s
t o
n
R
d

Terra
fa

y
R
d

O
ld

C
e
n
ter

Fayston
Rd

O
ld
C
o
u
n
ty

R
d

Brightenb
ack

L
n

Center Fayston
Rd

Center
Fayston

R
d

100

100

Armstrong Rd

D
e
e
rf ield

D
r

Old Count
y Rd M

ai
n
St



M
AIN

 S
TREET

PROJECT LOCATION

B
ow

m
an

47
8 

B
la

ir 
P

ar
k 

R
d.

W
ill

is
to

n,
 V

er
m

on
t 0

54
95

c 
  2

02
4 

B
ow

m
an

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 G

ro
up

 L
td

P
ho

ne
: (

80
2)

 8
79

-6
33

1

w
w

w
.b

ow
m

an
.c

om

B
A

S
E

 M
A

P
TO

W
N

 O
F 

W
A

IT
S

FI
E

LD
 W

O
R

K
 F

O
R

C
E

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

W
A

IT
S

F
IE

LT
, V

T

21-092

LET ANL LET

1" = 50'

05/13/2025

C1-01

LEGEND

EXISTING

ZONING NOTES:
Zoning District:                       Agricultural Residential
Min. Lot Size:                          1 ac
Setbacks:
     Front:                                  75'
     Side:                                   25'
     Rear:
Frontage (min.):
     Scenic Roads (Rt. 100):    200'
     All other roads:                  90'
Overall Parcel Size:               ±74.2

CONCEPT PLAN NOTES:
Total DU:                                 24 DU Townhomes
Proposed height / stories:     2 stories (up to 35')
Proposed Parking:                 2 space per DU + 1 guest
                                                                                  space
Proposed ROW:                     50'
Proposed Front Setback:
                 Route 100:             75'
                 New Road:             25'
Water:                                      Municipal
Sewer:                                     Onsite Community on
                                                 Shea lands

25
 ft

25
 ft

 

75 ft 

TOWNHOME unit
±1,650 sf (26.5'x30')

26.5 ft 

30
 ft

 

25
 ft 

25
 ft 

25
 ft

 25
 ft

 

50
 ft 

TOWNHOME OPTION

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E



M
AIN

 S
TREET

PROJECT LOCATION

B
ow

m
an

47
8 

B
la

ir 
P

ar
k 

R
d.

W
ill

is
to

n,
 V

er
m

on
t 0

54
95

c 
  2

02
4 

B
ow

m
an

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 G

ro
up

 L
td

P
ho

ne
: (

80
2)

 8
79

-6
33

1

w
w

w
.b

ow
m

an
.c

om

B
A

S
E

 M
A

P
TO

W
N

 O
F 

W
A

IT
S

FI
E

LD
 W

O
R

K
 F

O
R

C
E

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

W
A

IT
S

F
IE

LT
, V

T

21-092

LET ANL LET

1" = 50'

05/13/2025

C1-01

LEGEND

EXISTING

CONCEPT PLAN NOTES:
Total DU:                                 25 DU
        Townhome:                     9 DU 
        Multifamily:                     16 DU 
Proposed height / stories:     2 - 3 stories (up to 35')
Proposed Parking:                 2 space per DU + 1 guest
                                                                                  space
Proposed ROW:                     50'
Proposed Front Setback:      
                 Route 100:             75'
                 New Road:             75'
Water:                                      Municipal 
Sewer:                                     Onsite Community on
                                                 Shea lands

ZONING NOTES:
Zoning District:                       Agricultural Residential
Min. Lot Size:                          1 ac
Setbacks:
     Front:                                  75'
     Side:                                   25'
     Rear:
Frontage (min.):
     Scenic Roads (Rt. 100):    200'
     All other roads:                  90'
Overall Parcel Size:               ±74.2

75
 ft 

25
 ft

 75 ft 

MULTIFAMILY & TOWNHOME OPTION

50
 ft 

65 ft 

85
 ft

 

MULTIFAMILY
12 units

4 units per floor / 3.5 floors
±5,525 sf per floor (65'x85')

±12 parking spaces under building

TOWNHOME unit
±1,650 sf (26.5'x30')

26.5 ft 

30
 ft

 

M
U

LT
IF

A
M

IL
Y 

&
 T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E



M
AIN

 S
TREET

PROJECT LOCATION

B
ow

m
an

47
8 

B
la

ir 
P

ar
k 

R
d.

W
ill

is
to

n,
 V

er
m

on
t 0

54
95

c 
  2

02
4 

B
ow

m
an

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 G

ro
up

 L
td

P
ho

ne
: (

80
2)

 8
79

-6
33

1

w
w

w
.b

ow
m

an
.c

om

B
A

S
E

 M
A

P
TO

W
N

 O
F 

W
A

IT
S

FI
E

LD
 W

O
R

K
 F

O
R

C
E

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

W
A

IT
S

F
IE

LT
, V

T

21-092

LET ANL LET

1" = 50'

05/13/2025

C1-01

LEGEND

EXISTING

65 ft 

ZONING NOTES:
Zoning District:                       Agricultural Residential
Min. Lot Size:                          1 ac
Setbacks:
     Front:                                  75'
     Side:                                   25'
     Rear:
Frontage (min.):
     Scenic Roads (Rt. 100):    200'
     All other roads:                  90'
Overall Parcel Size:               ±74.2

85
 ft

 

25
 ft

75 ft 

MULTIFAMILY
12 units

4 units per floor / 3.5 floors
±5,525 sf per floor (65'x85')

±12 parking spaces under building

CONCEPT PLAN NOTES:
Total DU:                                 25 DU Multifamily
Proposed height / stories:     3 stories (up to 35')
Proposed Parking:                 2 space per DU + 1 guest
                                                                                  space
Proposed ROW:                     50'
'Proposed Front Setback:
                 Route 100:             75'
                 New Road:             30'
Water:                                      Municipal
Sewer:                                     Onsite Community on
                                                 Shea lands

MULTIFAMILY OPTION

30
 ft 

30
 ft

 M
U

LT
IF

A
M

IL
Y





























This board is visible to anyone on the web with a shareable link

Working on it May 23Cybersecurity 3

Done May 23Town meeting prep 1

May 23Digital signatures for warrants

Assistant Town administrator

Website clean-up and backlog of agen…

Contracts

f

May 22Health Insurance options

May 26Capital improvement plan

Town Operations

Person Status Date Priority FProject

Town staff succession planning

Budget & Financial Planning

Person Status Date Priority FProject

Help

Waitsfield Town Work Plan Integrate Automate Invite / 1

Main table  

6/3/25, 8:46 AM Waitsfield Town Work Plan

https://town-of-waitsfield.monday.com/boards/9214578885 1/5



Cemetery Trust investment policies

Infrastructure funding brainstorm

Streamlining Budgetary system

0
file

Town office

Fire Station

Town garage

General Wait House maintenance 2

Fire hydrant E Warren rd and Rolston rd

Fairgrounds property

Compile and understand a system for …

0
file

New culverts from Flooding event 2024

Review and analyze class 4 to potentia…

Property Maintenance

Person Status Date Priority FileProject

Roads and Transportation

Person Status Date Priority FileProject

6/3/25, 8:46 AM Waitsfield Town Work Plan

https://town-of-waitsfield.monday.com/boards/9214578885 2/5



Rt 100/17 intersection

Covered Bridge height restriction barri… 1

Culvert review and plan 1

0
file

ARPA funds

Paving Project grant

RRFB

0
file

Waitsfield Wastewater Infrastructure P…

Irasville Master Planning

Fire Dept. update and refine Capital Im…

Working list of Town assets and car… 2

0
file

Grant Administration

Person Status Date Priority FileProject

Planning Projects

Person Status Date Priority FileProject

6/3/25, 8:46 AM Waitsfield Town Work Plan

https://town-of-waitsfield.monday.com/boards/9214578885 3/5



Personnel policy

Procurement policy

Water ordinance

Domestic animal ordinance

2021 Tax Stabilization policy

MOA between Waitsfield/Fayston

Short term rentals

Website posting of all

0
file

Town energy use - efficiency/renewabl…

Ash Tree plan

Knotweed

Town office EV charging station

Tardy Parcel improvements and Farley …

Ordinance and Policies

Person Status Date Priority FileProject

Conservation, Climate, & Natural Resources

Person Status Date Priority FileProject

6/3/25, 8:46 AM Waitsfield Town Work Plan

https://town-of-waitsfield.monday.com/boards/9214578885 4/5



0
file

Add new group

6/3/25, 8:46 AM Waitsfield Town Work Plan

https://town-of-waitsfield.monday.com/boards/9214578885 5/5



Town Administrator Report 

June, 9 2025 

The past few weeks in Waitsfield have brought both challenges and progress. We’ve completed 
several key public works projects, including tree removal on East Warren Road, milling and 
paving on Bridge Street, and new pavement on Slow Road and East Warren Road. 

These improvements have come with some disruptions—steep driveway transitions, traffic 
changes, and concerns about Main Street not being swept in some time. Additionally, the May 
17th flooding event has created lasting impacts we're still working through. 

Our road crew responded quickly and effectively, and local partners like Mad River Property 
Management have helped lighten the load. Although Route 100 and Main Street fall under 
VTrans, the Town contracted sweeping services to move things forward which took place on 
Tuesday June 3rd. 

Despite the difficulties, the community continues to show patience and kindness. Since arriving 
in February, I’ve seen firsthand what makes Waitsfield special—a strong culture of care, 
collaboration, and resilience. 

Thank you for all you do to make this town feel like home. 

With appreciation, 

Peace 
York Haverkamp 

 

The Great Eddy Covered Bridge – Incident Report 

On May 20th at approximately 6:00 PM, the eastern side of the Great Eddy Covered Bridge was 
reportedly struck by a truck. A local resident, who was standing at the corner of Bridge and 
Main Streets, heard the impact and was able to capture a photo of the truck as it turned onto 
Main Street. 

A report was filed with the Sheriff’s Department, and we were advised to have the bridge 
assessed for potential damage. Miles Jenness of Vermont Timber Works inspected the structure 
and confirmed that there is no structural damage. 

The Waitsfield Road Crew plans to repair the visible damage as their schedule allows. 

 

VCDP Grant Board Presentation 



On Thursday, June 5, JB Weir, Jon Ashley of DuBois & King, and I presented our VCDP grant 
proposal to the full VCDP board via an online meeting. The slide deck used during the 
presentation is included in this meeting packet for reference. 

Overall, we felt the presentation was well received. The board asked a number of thoughtful 
questions, which we believe were addressed effectively. We expect to receive a decision on the 
grant award within the next month. 

 

RRFB Update 

I have submitted a permit application to VTrans to install a Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon 
(RRFB) at the crosswalk on Carroll Road. 

The first RRFB unit, approved by the Selectboard earlier this spring, came in well under the 
originally anticipated cost. As a result, the grant we received should be sufficient to cover the 
cost of installing two RRFB units within town. 

Vermont Emergency Management Newsletter 

As part of our ongoing efforts to strengthen emergency preparedness—including 
cybersecurity—I’ve subscribed to the Vermont Emergency Management newsletter. The latest 
edition can be accessed at the link below: 

https://vem.vermont.gov/contact-us/newsletter/June25 

 

Outdoor Recreation Economic Impact Toolkit – Waitsfield Invited as Pilot Community 

Waitsfield has been invited by the Vermont Department of Tourism and Marketing and VOREC 
to participate as a pilot community in a new project focused on the economic impact of 
outdoor recreation at the local level. 

What This Means: 

Waitsfield will help test and refine a statewide Local Economic Impact Toolkit aimed at helping 
communities better understand and leverage their recreation economies. 

Key reasons for Waitsfield’s selection include: 

• Prior VOREC and Rural Community program participation 

• Ongoing investment in four-season outdoor recreation 

• The opening of the Mad River Recreation Hub 

Pilot Participation Will Include: 

https://vem.vermont.gov/contact-us/newsletter/June25


• Formation of an ad hoc advisory committee 

• A kickoff meeting and site visit with consultants (June) 

• Local application of the toolkit and reporting (July) 

• A final meeting with statewide partners (September) 

This is a great opportunity to showcase our community’s leadership in rural economic 
development and smart growth planning. 

 

Please let me know if you have questions or would like further detail on any of the items above. 
With appreciation and peace, 
York Haverkamp 
Town Administrator 

 







 

 

 

 

 

 

Agency of Administration State of Vermont 
Department of Taxes 
133 State Street 
Montpelier, VT  05633-1401 

 

 

June 1, 2025 

 

Waitsfield Municipal Officials 

4144 Main St Waitsfield, VT 5673 

 

You are receiving this letter because the Vermont Department of Taxes is notifying towns required to reappraise 

Education Grand List properties.  

 

Vermont law 32 V.S.A. § 4041a(b), requires that a municipality maintain its Education Grand List with a 

coefficient of dispersion (COD) that is at or below 20%, as determined by the Director of Property Valuation 

and Review (PVR). If the Education Grand List falls outside this parameter, the Director must order the 

municipality to reappraise. Additionally, Act 68 of 2023 requires Vermont towns to conduct a full reappraisal 

every 6 years starting January 1, 2025. Regardless of reappraisal order status towns should prepare to adhere to 

this 6-year schedule. 

 

Based on the results of the 2024 Equalization Study the COD in Waitsfield continues to be outside the 

acceptable parameters, and therefore, an order to reappraise is required. The municipal CLA was 57.31% and 

COD was 26.09%. The last year of reappraisal in Waitsfield was 2006. 

 

What do you need to do? 

1. Please provide this information to your Board of Listers or Assessor. Additional information about 

reappraisals, required forms, reappraisal rules, PVR guidance and helpful resources can be found on the Tax 

Department website at: https://tax.vermont.gov/municipal-officials/listers-and-assessors/reappraisals. Please 

reach out to PVR/your District Advisor with any additional questions. 

2. Check in with your District Advisor on the status of your reappraisal. If any details or the timeline of 

your reappraisal have changed, please provide updated information. If your municipality has thus far failed 

to comply with prior year reappraisal orders, continued failure to comply (or make concerted progress) 

would result in the State withholding municipal education and transportation funding until the PVR Director 

certifies that the town as carried out their reappraisal plan (32 V.S.A. § 4041a(c)). 

 

Send communications to: tax.pvr@vermont.gov and your District Advisor (electronic submission preferred)  

Vermont Department of Taxes, Property Valuation and Review, ATTN:  Reappraisal, 133 State Street FL 1, 

Montpelier, VT 05633 

 

 Sincerely,  

 
Jill Remick, Director 

Property Valuation and Review 

  

cc:  Selectboard, Board of Listers/Assessor 

https://tax.vermont.gov/municipal-officials/listers-and-assessors/reappraisals
mailto:tax.pvr@vermont.gov


    
 
 

SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 
THIS OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered as of 

January 1, 2025 (the “Effective Date”) between the Customer and Contractor, each of whom are 
individually referred to as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”  This Agreement is subject to the terms 
and conditions attached as Exhibit A, which is incorporated by reference. 

“Customer” “Contractor ” Solar Facility (“System”) 

Town of Waitsfield Aegis Renewable Energy, LLC System name: 
Waitsfield Town Garage 

4144 Main Street Waitsfield, VT 
05673 

340 Mad River Park, Suite 6 
Waitsfield, VT 05673 

System address: 
761 Tremblay Road 

802-496-2218 x5 (802) 496-5155  System Size: 102.3 kW dc 

townadmin@gmavt.net hgalloway@aegis-re.com Commissioning Date: 
November 2014 

Designated Representative 
Annie Decker-Dell'Isola 

Designated Representative 
Heath Galloway  

Billing Information: 
Waitsfield Town Office 
Attn: Annie Decker-Dell'Isola 

  

 

 1. SCOPE OF WORK.  As part of Preventive Maintenance Inspections (“PMI”s) Contractor 
will perform the services described in Exhibit B (the “Services”).  All Services shall be performed in a 
manner consistent with System component manufacturers’ requirements unless otherwise noted by 
Contractor and acknowledged by Customer.  Each PMI shall be performed during Service Windows, the 
exact Service date to be at Contractor’s discretion, at the frequency selected below: 

  Quarterly    Every 6 months   Annually  Other: ________________________ 

 2. TERM AND TERMINATION.  This Agreement has an initial term of three years.  Either 
Party may terminate further performance of this Agreement at any time and for any or no reason by 
providing the other Party ninety (90) days prior written notice of its desire to terminate.  Either Party may 
terminate further performance of this Agreement immediately following a material breach by the other Party.  
Contractor shall be paid for all Services and Additional Services performed prior to the effective date of any 
termination.  The Agreement shall automatically renew for successive terms of one additional year unless 
earlier terminated by either Party as provided above. 

 2.1 COMPENSATION.  Customer shall pay Contractor a fixed annual fee, at the 
frequency indicated above in Section 1, for performance of the Services (the “Fixed Fee”) as described in 
Exhibit C.  Contractor may also perform repairs and other work beyond the scope of the Services 
described in Exhibit B that Customer requests and Contractor agrees to perform, as memorialized in a 
written “Work Order” signed by the Parties (“Additional Services”) substantially in the form of Exhibit D.  
Pricing for Additional Services will be based on the Parties’ mutual agreement on a fixed amount or based 
on the time and materials billing, as described in Exhibit C. Except as specifically provided in Exhibit C, 
Contractor’s pricing is subject to change after the first year of the term according to written notice provided 
at least 30 days before the applicable Services or Additional Services are performed. All invoices will be 

1 
 



sent electronically to the “Billing Information” email address noted above and are due within 30 days after 
receipt. If Contractor receives payment from Owner more than thirty (30) days after the date of the 
approved invoice, Contractor may assess a maximum monthly service charge of one percent per month 
(1%/month) until Contractor receives payment from Owner. Interest begins accruing on the invoice due date 
and shall be assessed daily and compounded monthly. If Owner has not paid an invoice for more than 90 
days, Contractor may refer collection of the unpaid amount to an attorney or collections agency.  

 2.2 Optional Pre-Authorization of Limited Additional Services.  While performing 
Fixed Fee Services, Contractor may observe Additional Services that, in Contractor’s reasonable discretion, 
are necessary for sustained and optimal operation of the System and can be resolved during that same site 
visit with materials and equipment Contractor has on hand. Contractor is authorized to perform Additional 
Services up to Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) without the need for a Work Order signed by the Parties.  

 3. RESPONSE TIME GUARANTEE.  Contractor shall respond to any problems impacting the 
System within the specified number of work days following notice received from Customer’s Authorized 
Representative as provided below.  Work days include Monday – Friday, excluding holidays recognized by 
the federal government and state where the System is located: 

Problem Action / Response Time 
High Priority: Any issue creating an imminent 
danger to people or property or that reduces 
System production by 50% or more. 

Service Contractor’s representative will be on-site 
within one to three (1-3) working days.  

Medium Priority: Any issue that reduces System 
production by 10-50%. 

Service Contractor’s representative will be on-site 
within three to five (3-5) working days.  

Low Priority: Issues that do not materially affect 
system performance (less than 10%). 

Contractor’s representative will address the next 
time they are onsite (for PMI or for a higher priority 
corrective item). 

 

 4. SPECIAL CONDITIONS.  __________________________________________________ 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________  

 

CUSTOMER: CONTRACTOR- Aegis Renewable Energy, LLC 

       
Signature 

       
Print Name 

       
Title 

_______________________________________ 

Date 

       
Signature 

Heath Galloway     
Print Name 

VP of Operations     
Title 

______________________________________ 

Date 

 

2 
 



Exhibit A 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR.  Contractor shall perform the responsibilities and 
Services assigned to it in Exhibit B in a prompt, safe, and professional manner using qualified personnel.  
The Services shall be performed in a manner consistent with prudent industry practices and the standard of 
care of similar construction professionals performing similar services in the region where each System is 
located.  

2. CUSTOMER’S RESPONSIBILITIES.  Customer shall provide the cooperation that is 
reasonable and necessary for Contractor to perform the Services.   

(a) Historical System Information.  Customer shall also provide Contractor copies of 
the following System documents:  contract(s) for the System’s original construction and any subsequent  
modifications, including any plans and specifications; as-built drawings, including maps of the array with 
relevant equipment indicated; single-line diagrams; copies of any historical reports pertaining to the System 
and its performance, such as photos, commissioning reports, infrared scans, and I-V curve traces; and 
manuals and warranties for all System components (collectively “System Information”).  If Customer lacks 
any System Information that Contractor determines is necessary for safe and cost-effective performance of 
the Services, the Parties may negotiate a work order for Contractor to develop such System Information as 
Additional Services.  If Customer does not provide the actual System manuals and warranties, Contractor 
shall rely on the most recent published versions of each that Contractor is able to obtain. 

(b) Site Access and Safety; System Condition.  Customer shall provide clear 
access and a safe work environment for Contractor and its personnel to perform the Services and notify 
Contractor immediately of any known problems or concerns that could affect System site safety or access. 
If Contractor arrives onsite to perform work and discovers unsafe working conditions, Contractor will notify 
the Customer and initiate a discussion about how to return the site to a safe condition. It is understood that 
certain tests, maintenance, and repairs require Contractor to disconnect and de-energize the System, 
resulting in a loss of electricity production and Customer’s potential need to purchase replacement 
electricity from its utility.  Contractor may refuse to perform any Services or Additional Services at any time 
based on its reasonable determination that the System or site are unsafe or unsuitable for the specified 
work.  In any such situation, Contractor shall be compensated for its determination based on the rates for 
Additional Services rather than any Fixed Fee associated with such Services. 

3. NOTICE.  Any notice provided under this Agreement shall be directed to the Parties’ 
Designated Representatives and will be deemed to have been received if transmitted by certified mail, or 
overnight courier service that provides a means to verify receipt, or if it is delivered by email (“Notice 
Email”), when the recipient, by an email sent to the email address for the sender, or by a notice delivered by 
another method in accordance with this Section 3, acknowledges having received the Notice Email.  An 
automatic “read receipt” does not constitute acknowledgment of a Notice Email for purposes of this Section 
3.  Either Party may change its Designated Representative or address by notifying the other Party as 
provided above. 

4. WARRANTY.   

(a) Express Warranties.  Excluding any refurbished equipment provided by 
manufacturers in response to warranty claims, Contractor warrants that all materials and equipment 
furnished shall be new unless otherwise specified. Contractor further warrants that the Services shall be 
performed in a good and workmanlike manner, of good quality, and free from faults and defects.  Contractor 
warranties its Services against defects in materials and workmanship for a period of one-year from the date 
of performance.  Any equipment supplied by Contractor is warranted exclusively by the applicable 
equipment manufacturer(s).  Title to all equipment supplied by Contractor and associated warranties shall 
pass to Customer upon Contractor’s receipt of payment in full. 

 3 
 



(b) Administration of Equipment / Material Warranty Claims.  Time and effort are 
required to process warranty claims with manufacturers of System equipment and materials.  Contractor will 
administer the warranty claim process for equipment and materials installed under this Agreement and 
equipment and materials that were not installed under this Agreement for an additional fee.   Additional time 
and expenses will be charged as Additional Services.  

(c) Disclaimer of Other Warranties.  The express warranties provided in this section 
are exclusive of all other warranties provided by law.  CONTRACTOR DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS AND IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

(d) No Performance or Savings Guarantees.  The energy production and financial 
performance of any System depend on factors beyond Contractor’s control.  These include original System 
construction, Customer’s particular energy demands and utility charges, weather, cloud cover, shading, 
dust, and grime.  Contractor does not make any warranty or legal representation concerning the System’s 
electricity production or financial performance.  Any energy production or financial performance estimates 
provided to Customer are calculations based on industry-standard computer modeling software and are not 
a warranty or guarantee. 

5. RIGHT TO REPAIR.  To productively resolve any problems that may arise, Customer 
agrees to provide Contractor written notice of any claimed deficiency in the Services within two weeks after 
discovery, together with a reasonable opportunity to investigate and repair the problem.  Customer will 
immediately report urgent problems or defects, including those presenting health or safety risks.  
Customer’s full compliance with these obligations is a pre-condition to Customer pursuing the matter in 
arbitration or court against Contractor, its subcontractors or suppliers.  Contractor will not be liable for any 
costs or damages that reasonably might have been mitigated or avoided by Customer’s timely and 
complete compliance with the maintenance and repair obligations outlined in this section.  This section does 
not create any Contractor duty or obligation beyond those provided elsewhere in this Agreement.   

6. INSURANCE.  Contractor shall maintain commercial general liability insurance and auto 
insurance, each with limits of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence, together with workers compensation 
insurance in amounts required by law.  Customer shall maintain, or covenants that owner of the real 
property where the System is located maintains for Contractor’s benefit, premises coverage as part of a 
commercial general liability insurance policy with limits of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence.  

7. INDEMNITY.  Contractor and Customer will each indemnify and hold the other Party, its 
subsidiaries and affiliates, and the directors, officers, agents, employees, successors and assigns of each of 
them harmless from any losses, liabilities, penalties, damages, expenses, claims, causes of action, suits, 
and attorneys’ fees (collectively “Claims”) to the proportional extent that any such Claims are caused by 
their respective negligent acts or omissions, including those of third parties for whom they are responsible.  
These obligations shall not be limited by insurance and shall survive termination of this Agreement.    

8. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY.  The provisions of this section shall apply: (i) to the 
maximum extent permitted by law and notwithstanding a Party’s indemnity obligations or any other 
provision of this Agreement; (ii) regardless of the legal or equitable theory advanced; (iii) shall survive 
termination of this Agreement; and (iv) even when the type of injury or damage suffered was known at the 
Effective Date or could have been anticipated. 

         (a)     Waiver of Consequential and Incidental Damages.  Neither Party, including such 
Party’s shareholders, partners, members, affiliates, principals, officers, directors, managers, employees, 
and representatives (collectively “Related Parties”), shall be liable to the other Party or its Related Parties 
in connection with the Services or this Agreement for any consequential, incidental or indirect loss or 
damage (collectively “Consequential Damages”).  Without limitation, Consequential Damages include lost 
profits, lost revenues, loss of goodwill, cost of capital, increased operating costs, delay costs, the cost of 
electricity purchased to make-up for electricity the System may have otherwise produced, or any other 
special or incidental damages of any kind, including any of the foregoing that were experienced by a 

 4 
 



third-party.  Each Party, on behalf of itself and its Related Parties, waives any right to assert or collect 
Consequential Damages from the other Party or its Related Parties.   

  (b)   Limitation on Damages.  EACH PARTY’S MAXIMUM TOTAL LIABILITY RELATED 
TO THE SERVICES OR THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE LIMITED TO AND SHALL NOT EXCEED THE 
SUM OF THE FEES PAID TO CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.               

  (c)  ACTS OF GOD; FORCE MAJEURE.  Excluding Customer’s obligation to pay 
Contractor for the Services, neither Party shall be liable to the other for any delay or failure to perform this 
Agreement that is caused by acts of war, terrorism, fire, flood, extreme weather, act of God, pandemic, riots, 
strike or labor difficulties, acts of any government authority, the unavailability of equipment and materials, or 
any other matter beyond the Party’s reasonable control, provided, however, that Contractor shall notify 
Customer of any such event within five business days after discovering its occurrence. The time for 
performing the Services shall be extended by a time period reasonably necessary to overcome the delay 
caused by the foregoing acts. 

9. CONFIDENTIALITY.  “Confidential Information” refers to any non-public information that is 
confidential or proprietary, pertains to a Party or a System, and is revealed by one Party to another in the 
performance of this Agreement. Neither Party will use any Confidential Information for any purpose except 
as necessary to perform this Agreement.  Except as required by applicable law, neither Party will disclose 
another’s Confidential Information to any third party other than such Party’s officers, employees, 
subcontractors, lenders, attorneys, accountants, advisors, or agents that (i) have a need to know the 
information for purposes that are not inconsistent with this Agreement, and (ii) have agreed to keep the 
information confidential or who are otherwise bound by confidentiality obligations at least as restrictive as 
those provided in this section. 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  Contractor’s relationship with Customer is that of an 
independent contractor.  No Party shall be deemed the agent, servant, or employee of the other Party 

11. NO ASSIGNMENT; SUBCONTRACTING.  Contractor may subcontract any part of the 
Services to others.  Customer may assign this Agreement to any person who holds an ownership or 
security interest in the System.  Neither Party may assign its rights or obligations under this Agreement 
without the prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor may assign this Agreement and its obligations hereunder to (i) 
any successor to its business by merger or consolidation or to (ii) any party acquiring substantially all of the 
assets of Contractor used in the performance of this Agreement (each a “Transferee”) so long as the 
Transferee and agrees to assume and perform all of the obligations of the assigning party under this 
Agreement insofar as performance is to occur after the assignment or transfer. 

12. MISCELLANEOUS.  Time is of the essence as to the performance of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement constitutes the Parties’ entire integrated agreement and supersedes all prior agreements and 
discussions.  No modification or waiver of this Agreement is valid unless written and signed by both Parties’ 
authorized representatives.  If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be unenforceable or invalid for 
any reason, the remaining provisions shall be unaffected, and this Agreement shall be construed as if the 
unenforceable provision had never been included.  This Agreement will bind and inure to the benefit of the 
Parties’ respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and permitted assigns.  This Contract may 
be executed and initialed in one or more counterparts.  Faxed, e-mailed, and other forms of electronic 
signatures are effective and binding as the same as originals. 

13. ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES.  Any dispute, controversy or claim relating to the Services 
or this Agreement shall be resolved through binding arbitration administered by the American Arbitration 
Association or any other arbitration service mutually agreeable to the Parties.  Arbitration fees will be 
divided equally between the Parties.  If either Party refuses or fails to name an arbitrator, furnish required 
payments or information demanded, or participate in the arbitration on or before applicable deadlines, then 
arbitration may proceed before an arbitrator named by the participating Party, and the arbitrator is hereby 
authorized to decide the dispute (without the other Party’s participation), based on the information 

 5 
 



presented to the arbitrator.  This duty to arbitrate shall survive termination of this Agreement or either 
Party’s performance of it.  The arbitration shall be final and judgment may be entered in any court having 
jurisdiction.  In no event may arbitration be demanded on a claim after the applicable statute of limitation for 
commencing litigation has expired.  The Parties understand that by signing this Agreement they are giving 
up their right to have the dispute litigated in a court or jury trial.  These arbitration rights shall be specifically 
enforceable under the Federal Arbitration Act at 9 U.S.C. § 1. 

14. CHOICE OF LAW; VENUE; ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  Unless otherwise indicated elsewhere 
in this Agreement, this Agreement shall be construed and governed according to the laws of the state of 
Vermont, and the Parties consent to the jurisdiction of that state’s state and federal courts.  The prevailing 
Party in any dispute arising out of the Services or this Agreement shall be awarded its attorneys’ fees and 
costs. 

 6 
 



Exhibit B 

SCOPE OF WORK – 2 PAGES 

  Service Name Service Description 
Preventative Maintenance Inspection (PMI) Items  

1 Manufacturer-specific 
recommendations 

Perform all manufacturer-specific recommendations to maintain warranty. 
Install the latest firmware version to the inverter(s) and data acquisition 
and monitoring systems. 

2 Ballast block inspection Inspect ballast blocks, including broken, missing, or improperly installed 
blocks 

3 Racking equipment inspection Inspect for oxidation, corrosion, loose bolts/nuts, clamps, parts. If roof 
system check the integrity of the penetrations 

4 Grounding inspection Check for system ground faults, Inspect grounding system for corrosion, 
loose terminations, damage from arcing, etc. 

5 Array inspection 

Check the PV modules for damage or debris. Include glass face, frame, 
cells, j-box, back sheet, etc. Report any damage to rack and damaged 
modules for warranty replacement. Note location and serial number of 
questionable modules. Check for cleanliness throughout the site-there 
should be no debris in the inverter pad area or elsewhere. Check for signs 
of animal infestation under the array.  

6 Module torque inspection PV module visual inspection and spot torque check on 10% of the module 
hardware. 

7 Combiner box physical 
inspection 

Check for water incursion, corrosion damage, debris, rust, or pests. 
Depending on the size, location, and accessibility of the system to 
unqualified personnel, the inverters, combiner boxes, and disconnect 
switches should require tools or have locks to prevent unauthorized 
access to the equipment.  

8 Combiner box electrical 
inspection 

Open each combiner box and check that no fuses have blown and that all 
electrical connections are tight. Inspect cabling, fuse holders, and fuses 
for discoloration, signs of arcing, damaged plastic, defects, open circuits, 
and ground faults.  

9 Cable inspection 

Inspect cabling for signs of cracks, defects, UV damage, pulling out of 
connections, touching sharp edges, or being improperly secured; 
overheating, arcing, short or open circuits, and ground faults. Inspect 
conduits for proper support, bushings, and expansion joints, where 
needed.  

10 DC disconnect switch inspection Check proper position of DC disconnect switches. Check for signs of 
water intrusion, rust, corrosion, etc. 

11 Electrical box inspection Inspect electrical boxes for corrosion or intrusion of water or insects. Seal 
boxes if required. Check position of disconnect switches and breakers. 

12 AC disconnect box inspection 
Verify there are no signs of water intrusion, rust, or mineral deposits. 
Ensure there is no damage or potential damage to the breaker panels, 
including circuit breakers and cable insulation.  

13 Protection device inspection Visually inspect and if applicable Exercise operation of all protection 
devices, replace if necessary. 

14 Switchgear inspection Switchgear inspection 

15 Monitoring Instrument inspection 

Verify accuracy of monitoring instruments (e.g. anemometer, 
pyranometers) with hand-held instruments to ensure that they are 
operational and within specifications. Also check mountings and cables 
for signs of damage or wear. A global horizontal irradiance sensor should 
be flat, and a plane of array irradiance sensor should be installed to the 
same pitch and orientation as the array. Irradiance sensors should be 
cleaned to remove dirt and bird droppings. 

 7 
 



16 Racking torque inspection Racking visual inspection and spot torque check on 10% of the racking 
hardware (not including module hardware). 

17 Physical inverter inspection 

Check conduit fittings, inverter covers, racking and mounting. The inverter 
should be bolted to the structure at all mounting points per the 
manufacturer installation requirements. Inspect inverter housing or shelter 
for physical maintenance required if present. Check for torque marks on 
the field terminations.  

18 Electrical room inspection Inspect electrical room (if applicable) and note any issues impacting the 
solar PV system 

19 Signage and Labeling 
Inspect placards and labels to ensure readability and weatherization. If no 
placards are present, or if some placards are missing, make a note of it 
and install the missing placards during the maintenance visit.  

20 Safety inspection Confirm location and readiness of fire extinguisher, other safety 
equipment 

21 Take indicative pictures Take 3-5 pictures of the array for the cover photo of the report 

Service 

1 Combiner box torque check Spot check connections for torque specification    
2 Clean/replace air filters Inspect air filters, clean or replace as necessary 

3 Dust cleaning from heat rejection 
fins Clean dust from heat rejection fins 

4 Check/replace transient voltage 
surge suppression device Check/replace transient voltage surge suppression devices 

5 AC connection torque check Verify cables and connections inside inverter AC disconnects are not 
showing damage and spot torque check 

6 Weather sensor inspection Verify accuracy of weather sensors and meters 
7 Check/replace desiccant Check desiccant and replace if necessary 

8 Remote monitoring 
Daily Monday through Friday* operations and performance monitoring via 
web-based Data Acquisition System (*During regular business hours, 
holiday’s excluded) 

9 Medium Voltage Scope of Work 
EXHIBIT G 

Will be performed on a cost plus 20% basis through a qualified 
subcontractor (upon request only). 

10 Aerial IR imaging 
Perform aerial imaging (either as a direct service or by 
employing a sub-contractor) prior to the Preventive 
Maintenance Inspection to better direct PM investigation. 

Optional Additional Services 

 Vegetation shade management 
Determine if any new objects, such as vegetation growth, are causing 
shading of the array and move them if possible. Remove any debris from 
behind collectors and from gutters. (either as a direct service or by 
employing a sub-contractor) 

 Vegetation management: Mowing Mowing or other landscape services 

 Documentation re-creation If original system documentation is not furnished, contractor to re-create 
electrical one-line diagram, string/wire map, etc. 

 Performance / IV Curve Testing 
Performance testing measures environmental conditions (at minimum: 
Date, Time, POA irradiance, Ambient & Module Temperature) and 
calculates the expected power of the PV string or module. This will then 
be compared to the desired bench-mark data ($125/10x DC Strings) 

 

 8 
 



 

Exhibit C 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 

 Contractor’s compensation rates for Fixed Fee Services and Additional Services are set forth 
below.   

 Fixed Fee amount and payment schedule.  Customer shall pay Contractor a Fixed Fee for its 
performance of the Services during each year of the Term according to the payment schedule and 
amount specified below: 

Term year Amount and Payment Schedule 

Contract Three Year 

$1,476.80.  Payment for the annual PM: 30% is due at 
beginning of the Contract Year and the balance of 70% is due 
following the performance of annual preventative maintenance 
services with 30-day payment terms. Payment terms for 
additional services are 30-day terms. Annual fixed fee and 
additional service rates increase by 2% annually. 

 

Additional Services.    Unless the Parties agree on a fixed price in a Statement of Work for 
Additional Services, Customer shall compensate Contractor for Additional Services according to the rate 
schedule below and based on the total number of labor hours, plus Contractor’s costs for any equipment 
and materials marked-up by 15 % for overhead and profit, plus any site visit and per diem charges.  
Overtime rates apply to labor performed on weekdays from 5 p.m. – 7 a.m. and any time on weekends 
and holidays. Prices below are subject to change without notice. 

 
Personnel Regular Time Rate / Hr. Overtime Rate / Hr. 

Licensed Electrician (Subcontracted) Cost plus 25% Cost plus 25% 

Apprentice Electrician (Subcontracted) Cost plus 55% Cost plus 25% 

Master Electrician $125.00 187.50 

Field Service Maintenance Technician $120.00 $175.00 

In-House Service Maintenance Technician $95.00 $142.00 

Site visit travel charge per person $65.00 $65.00 

Administrative $90.00 $90.00 

Project Manager or Supervisor $120.00 $180.00 

Per diem for Additional Services requiring 
multiple days to perform Federal Per diem plus 25% Federal Per diem plus 25% 

Equipment & Materials Cost plus 25% Cost plus 25% 

Mileage Federal Mileage Rate Federal Mileage Rate 

 

 9 
 



EXHIBIT D 

EXCLUDED SERVICES 
 

1. Any installation of additional monitoring equipment that may be required if Site conditions 
change for reasons beyond Contractor's control. Specifically, interference from additions or 
repairs to the Premises. 

2. Parts or equipment that were not specified in the as-built drawings, amendments and change 
orders thereto, entered into by the Parties, and installed by Contractor or its Subcontractors. 

3. In the event that any manufacturer of materials, equipment or similar items relating to any 
System is not able or willing to honor its product warranty to Company, Contractor shall not be 
responsible for the costs of any such manufacturer's components. 

4. Reactive Service Package is not included in the base price. It is unclear if Customer is 
requesting a quote for this package and has not defined how many hours, they want this 
package to cover.  

5. Initial setup of onsite DAS equipment is not included in the Base Offer 
6. Medium voltage scope of work EXHIBIT G is not included in the Base Offer however it will be 

performed on a cost plus 20% through a qualified subcontractor if requested.  
7. IV Curve Tracing is not included as part of the Base Offer however a price for this service has 

been provided because this appears to be an item that the Customer wanted as an option 
 

 10 
 



EXHIBIT E 

SYSTEM MONITORING EQUIPMENT 

The revenue grade monitoring system will be used to provide the actual kWh production data from 
the System. On an annual basis, the monitoring system will be tested to verify that it is operating as 
intended. Automatic e-mail alerts will be setup within ten (10) days of the execution of each Rider. 
Automatic e-mail alerts will be issued by the monitoring system if the System goes offline at any 
time for any reason. Company will be notified of alerts and Contractor will acknowledge the alerts. 
Contractor will respond as needed to troubleshoot the problem within the timeframe specified in 
Exhibit C. 

Setup, maintenance and administration, via the monitoring system's online or software interface, of 
alerts and equipment parameters (e.g., string or zone level monitoring, expected energy output per 
manufacturer specifications, accounting for actual installation characteristics even if different from 
blueprints) will be responsibility of Contractor. 

 11 
 



 

Exhibit F 

Form of Work Order For Additional Services 

 

This work for additional services (the “Work Order”) is entered into pursuant to that 
certain Operations and Maintenance Agreement between Customer and Contractor with an 
Effective Date of [________] (the “O&M Agreement”)  Unless specifically noted herein to the 
contrary, all of the terms and conditions of the O&M Agreement are incorporated by reference 
into this Work Order and all of the definitions in the O&M Agreement shall have the same 
meaning in this Work Order.  

 

1. DESCRIPTION OF WORK. 

[Insert description] 

2. WORK SCHEDULE. 

[Insert schedule] 

 

3. FEES AND PAYMENT.  Customer shall pay Contractor for its performance of the 
Services according to the payment schedule and amount specified below: 

 Fixed Fee of $[______] 

 Time, equipment and materials basis pursuant to the rate schedule in Exhibit C of the 
O&M Agreement, as such Exhibit may have been amended. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 12 
 



EXHIBIT G 

Medium Voltage Electrical System Preventive Maintenance Inspection 

Overhead Generator Disconnect and Pole Line Hardware - The S&C group operated overhead 
disconnect (part # 137364-S1-A2-D-P1-W-S6L) should be maintained in accordance with manufacturer 
instruction. While the manufacturer has stated that no regular maintenance is required, a visual and 
mechanical inspection of the overhead switch and the remainder of pole line hardware is expected on a 
routine basis. 

“[Owner] is responsible for maintaining safe and functional systems over the lifetime of the projects it 
oversees. This responsibility includes a project’s medium voltage service equipment, which is designed to 
safeguard compatibility with the utility system. The most critical part of a regular maintenance program is 
to ensure all system components are maintained in accordance with manufacturer instruction in 
keeping with recommended intervals. For each site visit, both corrective and preventative 
maintenance logs must be kept recording all actions taken and dates performed, per maintainable 
equipment. These records must be made available at utility request. A sample ‘affirmation letter’ 
is shown in National Grid ESB 755. 

● Main Utility Generator Disconnect Switch, pole mounted on 87-2 
● Utility Disconnect Switch 87-4/C-1, group operated and 15kV rated, pole mounted on pole 

87-4/C-1; S&C Omni-rupter 
● Solid Blade Disconnect, Cooper # L4B3P1A, C-511, pole mounted on C3 
● Fused Cutouts, Cooper # L4B1P1A, C-513, on pole C-1 
● Myers fused switch with metering, pad mounted 
● Cooper PWE Recloser with Form 6 Recloser Control, pad mounted 
● Eaton 1250 kVA wye:wye transformer, 13.2KV:480Y/277V (Transformers XFMR-01) 
● Overhead Generator Disconnect and Pole Line Hardware 

o The S&C group operated overhead disconnect (part # 137364-S1-A2-D-P1-W-  
S6L) should be maintained in accordance with manufacturer instruction. While the 
manufacturer has stated that no regular maintenance is required, a visual and 
mechanical inspection of the overhead switch and the remainder of pole line hardware is 
expected on a routine basis. 

▪ Required maintenance interval: 2 years 

● Protective relay testing 
o For both preventative and corrective maintenance on the Form 6 relay, refer to the 

Form 6 Microprocessor-Based Pad-Mount Recloser Control Installation and Operation 
Instructions section on “Testing.” Form 6 recloser controls use extensive self-testing 
capabilities and feature detailed metering and event reporting functions which lower 
dependence on routine maintenance testing. Cooper Power Systems recommends 
doing routine tests at all instances of corrective maintenance (when faults are 
registered). This includes verifying recloser control is reading AC quantities accurately, 
by comparing with another line meter. It also includes confirming (through event 
reporter) that the protective equipment is operating in an expected fashion when 
events register. 

o If relay settings are modified in the course of preventative or corrective maintenance, 
the revised setting file should be submitted to the utility for review and acceptance. 
As required, a written affirmation should be submitted to utility 

 

 13 
 



clarifying the most recent maintenance activities. Any corrective maintenance work on 
service equipment should involve utility notification. 

▪ Required maintenance interval: 6 years (per National Grid) 

● Fused Cutouts 
o Refer to IEEE Std C37.48TM and IEEE Std C37.48.1-2002 standard, Guide for 

Application, Operation, and Maintenance of High-Voltage Fuses, for 
maintenance of the HX-CB loadbreak fuse cutout. 

▪ Required maintenance interval: - years 

● Recloser 
o The PWE recloser should be maintained in accordance with the Type PWE, PWVE 

Three-Phase Microprocessor-Controlled; Installation and Operation Instructions. In 
accordance with the “Service Information” of the manual, routine visual inspection to 
check for physical damage and verify proper operation is expected. Cooper Power 
Systems recommends service intervals determined based on operating and climatic 
conditions. However, solid-insulated, vacuum-interrupting reclosers should be inspected 
every 10 years. 

▪ Required maintenance interval: 10 years 

● Switch + Metering 
o The Myers switch and metering should be maintained in accordance with the 

Eaton_MVS.. In accordance with the “Maintenance” of the manual, routine visual 
inspection to check for physical damage and verify proper operation is expected. Meyers 
recommends the switch be inspected once a year or after its rated current interruptions, 
as specified in industry standard ANSI C37.22. Also the switch should inspected at first 
opportunity after it has been closed against a fault current. Insulation (Megger testing), 
blade alignments, and clearances should be inspected once a year. 

▪ Required maintenance interval: 10 years 

● Transformers 
o The Eaton liquid-filled transformers should be maintained in accordance with the 

manufacturer’s preventative maintenance instructions. All checks are to cover exterior 
inspection, inside cabinet inspection, and a dissolved gas analysis. Remedial actions 
should be performed as directed. Refer to the manual for the full listing of inspection 
items. 

▪ Required maintenance interval: 5 years 

References - National Grid ESB No. 755 – Operations and Maintenance Requirements For Services 
Above 600 Volts, Form 6 Microprocessor-Based Pole-Mount Recloser Control Installation and 
Operation Instructions, NOVA 15 Three-Phase Microprocessor-Controlled; Installation and 
Operation Instructions Three-phase pad-mounted compartmental type transformer installation and 
maintenance instructions – Cooper Power Series, Cooper PWE Recloser Catalog 

 

 

 14 
 



Hydraulic Request Form 

 
Town: Waitsfield 

 

Route/Town Highway#:  

Old Center Fayston rd. 

Center Fayston rd. 

 

Mile Marker / Bridge# / Location: 

(Directions From Nearest Town Rte. Intersection, 911 address) 

Old Center Fayston rd approximately 1500 feet off of old county rd. 

Center Fayston rd approximately 2500 feet from rt 100 

Structure Type: 

Old Center Fayston rd. Culvert a 4’ round was replaced with an 8’ squashed 

Center Fayston rd. Culvert was a 3’ round replaced with a 6’ squashed 

Structure Size: 

 

GPS Coordinates: 

Old Center Fayston rd. 44.20397 N and 72.82014 W 

Center Fayston rd. 44.21162 N and 72.81079 W 

 

Pictures (Send via E-mail): 

 

Mark Location: 

(On Stake write VTrans Hydraulic Study) 

 

Town Contact: 

Name York Haverkamp 



Phone 802 496-2780 

E-mail townadmin@gmavt.net 

 

mailto:townadmin@gmavt.net


Chas Goodman Excavator, LLC 

Chas. Goodman Excavator, LLC - 429 East Road, Waitsfield, VT. 05673 - www.goodmanconstructionvt.com - (802) 496-3914 
   

 

June 4, 2025 

Waitsfield Select board 

 

Meadow Bridge VS Pine Brook Bridge 

 

Hi Folks, 

 

Thinking about the meadow Rd Bridge. The access is terrible and really not worth the trouble. My plan 
would be to scrap the Meadow Rd Bridge and replace the Pine Brook Bridge with a concrete two lane 
bridge. Take the Pine Brook Bridge down to Lareaus’ and have it be a fun tourist attraction. There are two 
massive I beams under that bridge, which would make it very easy to move. 

The Meadow Road Bridge can handle cars and even if it fails, you now have a much better route.  

 

Just a thought. 

Also. Are you considering an electronic eyes for the Village Bridge? 

 

Charlie Goodman 

Road Commissioner   

http://www.goodmanconstructionvt.com/








TOWN OF WAITSFIELD, VERMONT 1 
Selectboard Meeting Minutes 2 

Monday, May 19, 2025 3 
Draft 4 

  5 
Members Present:  David Babbott-Klein, Fred Messer, Brian Shupe, Larissa Ursprung 6 
Staff Present: York Haverkamp, Town Administrator 7 
Others Present:  Barbara Chalom, Russell Chalom, John Crown (MRVTV), AnnMarie Harmon 8 
(General Wait House Commission), Dori Ingalls (Mad Marathon), Curt Lindberg (Conservation 9 
Commission), Kelly Mazur, Gail O’Keefe (Conservation Commission), Alice Peal, Joshua Schwartz 10 
(MRVPD) 11 
 12 
I. Call to Order:  The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm by Brian Shupe. The meeting was 13 
held in person at the Waitsfield Town Office and remotely via Zoom. 14 
 15 
1. Review agenda for addition, removal, or adjustment of any items per 1 VSA 312(d)(3)(A). 16 
An update on flood recovery was added; approval of minutes was removed from the Consent 17 
Agenda. 18 
 19 
2.  Public Forum. 20 
Russel and Barbara Chalom requested that the Town provide material to repair the water bars 21 
on Dana Hill Road, as had been done two years ago.  Mr. Shupe indicated that he would contact 22 
Josh Rogers regarding this, but advised that it might not be delivered until the recent storm 23 
damages were repaired. 24 
 25 
II. Regular Business 26 
1.  Meadow Road Bridge & Covered Bridge Contingency. 27 
Mr. Shupe outlined the history of the recent Meadow Road bridge inspections and increasing 28 
deterioration of the bridge’s condition, explaining that the Town is working with FEMA and 29 
VTrans to develop a plan for either repair or replacement of the bridge.  Ms. Peal outlined that 30 
a study to determine if repair is possible, and a subsequent engineering design, are necessary 31 
steps, and that a quote from Dubois and King for that work is approximately $250K.  She and 32 
Keith Cubbon (CVRPC) have been looking into funding possibilities, but so far have not found a 33 
suitable program for which applications are being accepted.  They have also been learning what 34 
would be necessary if the bridge needs to be closed, and Ms. Peal explained that a temporary 35 
bridge would likely be available for an installation cost plus an additional $2K per month. 36 
 37 
Mr. Shupe and Mr. Haverkamp noted that they, as well as FEMA representatives, believe that 38 
the $250K proposed for an engineering evaluation is an excessive amount, and Mr. Haverkamp 39 
indicated that he will work with FEMA at an upcoming meeting to get clarification of what is 40 
needed and what an anticipated cost would be. 41 
 42 
2.  Conservation Commission – Scrag Mountain Trail RFP. 43 
Mr. Lindberg presented information regarding the next phase of Scrag Mountain trail 44 
development, noting that an RFP for construction was ready to be published, and that he would 45 
provide financial information for the Board once proposals have been received. 46 
 47 



Ms. O’Keefe reported that she has applied for funding for the purchase of electronic collars to 48 
be used to control the goat herd which will be pastured in knotweed areas this summer, 49 
explaining that the group providing the funding/collars expects the Town to purchase the 50 
collars at the end of the season if they work well and their continued use is desired.  She 51 
indicated that her intent is to organize a fundraiser if this is the case, and Mr. Lindberg noted 52 
that other funding may also be possible for this project.  They requested that the Board 53 
approve the initial agreement for the use of the collars. 54 
 55 
It was agreed that future RFPs to be published by the Conservation Commission should be 56 
included in Selectboard Consent Agendas. 57 
 58 
MOTION:  Ms. Ursprung moved to approve the publication of the proposed RFP for the next 59 
construction phase of Scrag Mountain trail work.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Babbott-60 
Klein, and passed unanimously. 61 
 62 
MOTION:  Mr. Messer moved to authorize the Town Administrator to sign an agreement as 63 
outlined for the use of electronic collars for the goat herd being pastured in knotweed areas this 64 
summer.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Babbott-Klein, and passed unanimously. 65 
 66 
3.  Wastewater Update. 67 
Joshua Schwartz highlighted some information from the written report he had provided, noting 68 
that this and all previous updates are available on the Town’s website.  After providing some 69 
background information, Mr. Schwartz explained that the project is currently in final design 70 
phase, and that efforts are being made to coordinate with plans for Active Transportation 71 
Corridor.  Current focus areas of the project have been on obtaining easements for pump 72 
station locations as well as connections to buildings and beginning the completion of the final 73 
design phase, which is anticipated to be completed by the end of January, 2026.  He noted that 74 
development of an associated ordinance is also upcoming, as well as a determination of what 75 
operating costs are expected to be. 76 
 77 
Regarding funding, Mr. Schwartz explained that so far all funds expended have been either 78 
grant monies or proceeds from forgivable loans, and that more information regarding recent 79 
grants applications will be known at the end of June.  The team is currently working with USDA 80 
Rural Development to design a grant and loan package for the additional funds which will be 81 
needed to complete the project. 82 
 83 
4. General Wait House (GWH). 84 
Mr. Shupe noted there have recently been multiple issues regarding the GWH to be addressed, 85 
and this this is in part due to the amount of deferred maintenance being addressed by the 86 
newly created GWH Commission, which is helping to move things forward for this community 87 
space.  Mr. Shupe also noted that he is on the Board of Friends of the Mad River, but did not 88 
feel that he was influenced by any financial conflict; nobody objected to his full participation in 89 
related discussions. 90 
 91 
Connector Space Fees and Rent – It was outlined that the rental fee for this space had been 92 
increased as an incentive to have the area cleaned up by the tenants, and that the current fee 93 
for the space is more on a per-foot basis than the rent for the interior office space.  There was 94 



agreement that the connector area has now been cleaned up and is being used effectively.  95 
Discussion then focused on whether the rent should be lowered to equal the rate of the interior 96 
space, or be set to a lower amount.  It was noted that the space is not heated, but contains an 97 
electrical outlet.  It was also pointed out that the tools and equipment stored there are in part 98 
for community use.  There was agreement on the need to balance expenses and a fair rental 99 
rate, including the desire for community space in that balance, and the Board asked that the 100 
Wait House Commission discuss the matter and propose an appropriate rental rate. 101 
 102 
Event Funding Request – Ms. Harmon noted that it had been decided to not schedule any 103 
events at this point, so requests have been withdrawn.  The Commission will instead be 104 
organizing an event for next year’s 250th anniversary of the signing of the Declaration of 105 
Independence. 106 
 107 
It was discussed that the terminology and purpose of the GWH funds needs to be clarified, and 108 
AnnMarie requested that the Town’s policy related to alcohol consumption on Town property 109 
be reviewed. 110 
 111 
Projector – Several objections had been raised regarding the proposal to install a shelf at the 112 
Wait House to hold a projector, and Mr. Golfman has indicated that a television/screen on a 113 
movable platform will be a suitable solution.  Board members expressed their support for this 114 
‘flat screen on wheels’ approach, and indicated that this solution should be pursued. 115 
 116 
5.  Pocket Park Easement. 117 
Mr. Haverkamp outlined the request for a resurfacing of the Pocket Park’s walkway.  Ms. Mazur 118 
explained that she has been undertaking some of the maintenance of this area, as she owns the 119 
adjacent building.  She indicated that she is willing to organize the work needed, but requested 120 
that the Town provide funding for equipment and materials needed to address issues such as 121 
silt build up and walkway maintenance.  Other items she has addressed have been weeding of 122 
the bricks along the sidewalk and general clean up.  It was indicated that some of the work 123 
might be undertaken by Steward MRV volunteers, and also noted that the Road Crew is 124 
currently understaffed and would not likely have time to do any of this maintenance.  Ms. 125 
Mazur emphasized that creation of a maintenance plan would be beneficial going forward. 126 
 127 
5A. Flood Recovery Update 128 
The reduced size of the Road Crew due to injury and a vacant position was noted, and 129 
appreciation was expressed for the work undertaken by the remaining Crew members in 130 
addressing the damage due to the prior weekend’s flooding. 131 
 132 
The communication flow during the flooding was discussed, as well as the potential of an MOU 133 
for mutual aid which is potentially being addressed by the MRVPD staff.  Mr. Messer also 134 
emphasized the need for Valley-wide emergency management plans, and proposed that 135 
Butternut Hill be added to the LHMP due to the repeated flooding of that road. 136 
 137 
6. Work Plan Overview. 138 
Due to technical issues, the plan that Mr. Haverkamp had been working on was not accessible.  139 



He provided an overview of the software, and will provide a full document for review in 140 
advance of the next Selectboard meeting. 141 

7.  Selectboard Roundtable. 142 
Mr. Babbott-Klein provided an update on the MRVPD Steering Committee, noting discussions of 143 
flood resilience, community development and community spaces, and the PD’s 40th anniversary 144 
plans.  145 

Mr. Shupe noted that he had heard concerns regarding the Round Up having a smaller area 146 
used for the weekly event; it was noted that the organizers intend to reduce the amount of 147 
area to be roped off for the events.  148 

8.  Town Administrator Update. 149 
Mr. Haverkamp outlined the suggestion for including the installation of insulation at the Wait 150 
House during the roofing work which is scheduled, and noted the cost associated with two 151 
types of insulation – standard fiberglass batting and rigid foam insulated plywood panels.  It 152 
was agreed that the rigid foam is the better solution, and also agreed that the roof color should 153 
be a grey that best resembles aged cedar.  154 

MOTION:  Mr. Messer moved to approve the installation of rigid foam panel insulation at the 155 
Wait House as part of the upcoming roof replacement, at an estimated cost of $8000.  The 156 
motion was seconded by Mr. Babbott-Klein, and passed unanimously. 157 

Mr. Haverkamp also reported on the following: 158 

• Miles Jenness is drafting plans for the installation of a ‘headache’ bar to prevent over-159 
height vehicles from entering the covered bridge, as these features now appear to be 160 
allowed by VTrans. 161 

• A policy related to damage caused to Town property will be drafted as time allows. 162 
• Street sweeping is planned for the coming week. 163 
• He is ready to move forward with TextMyGov set up if the Board would like to proceed. 164 

9. Approval of Minutes 165 
The minutes of April 25, 2025 were amended and approved. 166 

III. Consent Agenda. 167 
Earlier in the meeting, Dori Ingalls had briefly provided some information about the widespread 168 
recognition of the Mad Marathon and registration numbers.  The potential paving of the 169 
Crosspoint roadways had been mentioned, as well. 170 
APPROVAL:  A motion to approve the Consent Agenda passed unanimously. 171 

• Approve Minutes of May 5, 2025 172 
• Approve Bills Payable and Treasurer’s Warrants 173 
• Approve Annual Notice to previous dog license registrants who have not yet renewed 174 
• Approve Festival Permit for Mad Marathon for events scheduled for July 11 – 13, 2025 175 
• Approve Tax Map Maintenance Contract with Cartographic Associates, Inc (CAI 176 

Technologies) for 4/1/25 – 3/31/26 177 
• Approve Letter of Intent for SFY26 Municipal Road Grants-In-Aid Program 178 
• Approve Liquor License Outdoor Consumption Permit for Twisted Halo 179 



 180 

IV. Other Business 181 

1.  Correspondence/reports received were reviewed. 182 

V. Executive Session 183 
MOTION: A motion to enter Executive Session pursuant 1 V.S.A. § 313 (a) (3) [Personnel], 184 
inviting Mr. Haverkamp to join passed unanimously. 185 

The meeting entered Executive Session at 9:00 pm and returned to open session at 9:05 pm. 186 
 187 
MOTION:  Mr. Messer moved to hire Chad Guyette to the Road Department under the terms 188 
discussed.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Ursprung, and passed unanimously. 189 

VI. Adjourn 190 
The meeting adjourned at 9:06 pm.   191 

Respectfully submitted,  192 
Carol Chamberlin, Recording Secretary 193 


	Agenda June 9 2025 Selectboard
	Budget Status Report Steve and Sandy
	Housing- Shay Combined Town Summary - 19MAY2025
	Workforce Housing Summary 19MAY2025
	Overview of Concept

	Town Parcel
	19MAY2025 - Workforce Housing Options
	Sheets and Views
	Base Map



	road crew excavator rent quote Anderson recommended
	Road crew excavator rent quote CRW
	Road Crew Loader Cat Quote
	Road Crew Loader Komatsu quote
	Monday Waitsfield Town Work Plan 6.3.2025
	Town Administrator Report draft 6.9.2025
	2023 - 8.9 .gov Domain Registration Letter
	2025 Reappraisal Order - Waitsfield
	2025 Town of Waitsfield_3 YR_O&M_Contract
	Hydraulic Request Form for Culverts July 2024 Flood
	Meadow Road Bridge 2025
	Sheriff contract
	Waitsfield-SB-Minutes-May-19-2025-draft (002)



